
          

 

 

QUANTUM PARK OVERLAY 
DEPENDENT DISTRICT 

 

CITY OF BOYNTON BEACH 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 15, 2018 
2:00 P.M. 

 

 

 
 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.quantumparkoverlaydd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 





Palm Beach Post, The 
Nov. 2, 2018 
Miscellaneous Notices 

QUANTUM PARK OVERLAY DEPENDENT DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of 
Supervisors of the Quantum Park Overlay Dependent District will hold Regular Meetings 
at 2:00 p.m. in the Conference Room of Boynton Beach Fire Station No. 5 located at 
2080 High Ridge Road, Boynton Beach, Florida 33426, on the following dates: 
November 15, 2018 January 17, 2019 February 21, 2019 March 21, 2019 April 18, 2019 
May 16, 2019 June 20, 2019 July 18, 2019 August 15, 2019 September 19, 2019 The 
purpose of the meetings is to conduct any business coming before the Board. The 
meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions 
of Florida law. Copies of the Agendas for any of the meetings may be obtained from the 
District's website or by contacting the District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or toll free 
at 1-877-737-4922 prior to the date of the particular meeting. From time to time one or 
more Supervisors may participate by telephone; therefore, at the location of these 
meetings there will be a speaker telephone present so that interested persons can 
attend the meetings at the above location and be fully informed of the discussions 
taking place either in person or by telephone communication. Meetings may be 
continued as found necessary to a time and place specified on the record. If any person 
decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these 
meetings, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may 
need to insure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own 
expense and which record includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is 
based. In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any 
person requiring special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these 
meetings should contact the District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-
877-737-4922 at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the particular meeting. 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. QUANTUM 
PARK OVERLAY DEPENDENT DISTRICT www.quantumparkoverlaydd.org 11-1/2018 

 

Page 1



 

1 
 

QUANTUM PARK OVERLAY DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 18, 2018 
 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Charles Kanter called to order the October 18, 2018, Regular Board Meeting of the 
Quantum Park Overlay Dependent District at 2:03 p.m. in a Conference Room of the Boynton 
Beach Fire Station No. 5, 2080 High Ridge Road, Boynton Beach, Florida 33426. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION  
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the October 18, 2018, Regular Board Meeting 
had been published in The Palm Beach Daily Business Review on October 11, 2018, as legally 
required.   
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Present and constituting a quorum were Chairman Charles Kanter and Supervisors Andrew Mack 
and Colin Groff.   
 
Staff in attendance were:  District Managers Peter L. Pimentel, Michael McElligott and Andrew 
Karmeris of Special District Services, Inc.; and Ray Spear of the Grassroots Corporation.  Attorney 
Sherry Sutphen attended by telephone. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Supervisor Colin Groff requested a discussion regarding dissolution of the District and the letter 
from Ryan Homes be added to the agenda under New Business.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Mack, seconded by Mr. Groff and passed unanimously to approve the 
agenda as amended. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 1.  September 26, 2018, Regular Meeting Minutes 
  
Chairman Kanter asked if there were any comments regarding the September 26, 2018, Regular 
Board Meeting minutes.  Hearing none, the following motion was made: 
 

Page 2



 

2 
 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Mack, seconded by Mr. Goff and passed unanimously to approve the 
September 26, 2018, Regular Board Meeting minutes as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. Status Report of the Auditor Selection Process 
 
Mr. Pimentel reported that the Requests for Auditing Services were sent to 6 audit firms and a 
legal ad was published in the Palm Beach Post.  He further informed the Board that proposals were 
due by the end of October.  
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2018-06 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Amended 
Budget 

 
Mr. Pimentel presented the 2017/2018 Amended Budget.  Mr. McElligott fielded questions from 
the Board.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Groff, seconded by Mr. Mack and passed unanimously to approve 
Resolution 2018-06, as presented. 
 

2. Consider Federally-Funded Sub-Award and Grant Agreement 
 
Mr. Pimentel presented the Federally Funded Sub-Award and Grant Agreement.  Ms. Sutphen 
fielded questions from the Board noting that the Agreement is essentially non-negotiable.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Groff, seconded by Mr. Mack and passed unanimously to approve the 
Federally Funded Sub-Award and Grant Agreement, as presented and the Chairman is authorized 
to sign the necessary documents.  
 

3. Discussion Regarding Dissolution of the District 
 
Mr. Groff requested that Attorney Sutphen research the steps to dissolve the District.  He also 
requested that she address (1) what would happen to the litigation if the District is dissolved; (2) 
how would the debt of the District be handled; (3) can the City Council take over as the District 
Board; and (4) what would happen to excess revenue and property of the District.  The consensus 
of the Board was to have the Attorney and Manager prepare a concise report addressing Mr. 
Groff’s items.  
 

4. Discussion Regarding Letter from Ryan Homes 
 
Attorney Sutphen referred to an undated letter recently received from Ryan Homes questioning 
whether the District was interested in selling the lands encompassing the two District Preserves.  
She stated that the letter should be received and filed and that no response was necessar 

Page 3



 

3 
 

I.        ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

1. Manager’s Report 
 

 Update on November 6, 2018 Landowner’s Meeting 
 

Mr. Pimentel reminded the Board of the upcoming Landowners’ meeting scheduled for November 
6, 2018 at 2:00 pm in the Conference Room of the Boynton Beach Fire Station No. 5, 2080, High 
Ridge Road, Boynton Beach, Florida 33426.  He asked if the Board wanted to select someone to 
represent the District at the Landowners’ meeting and cast the votes for the District.  Following a 
discussion, a motion was made as shown below. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Mack, seconded by Mr. Groff and passed unanimously to authorize 
the District Manager to execute a proxy form designating an appointee from the City of Boynton 
Beach to represent the District at the Landowners’ meeting.  
 

2. Attorney’s Report 
 

Attorney Sutphen updated the Board on the pending litigation matters and the ongoing settlement 
negotiations.  Mr. Groff suggested that Attorney Sutphen send a note to the City Attorney 
reminding him that a draft Agreement has been submitted to the City but that there has been no 
response. 
 

3. Financial Report 
 

Mr. McElligott presented the Financial Report in the meeting books.  

4. Field Report 
 

Mr. Spear informed the Board that the irrigation system that had been struck by lightning has been 
repaired.  He also informed the Board that the City has asked the District to look into taking 10 
gopher tortoises into the District’s preserves. He noted that Dr. Richardson has been asked to 
review the request  
 
J.          BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
Chairman Kanter asked the City representatives on the Board look into how to get keys to open 
the locks into the City Park land.  He further informed the Board that a homeless tent was found 
in the City Park.  He also asked that Mr. Spear to inform the lake treatment company to notify the 
HOA when treating the lake.  
 
K.          ADJOURN 

Chairman Kanter adjourned the meeting at 2:53 p.m. 
   
 
________________________________              ______________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 4



QUANTUM PARK OVERLAY DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR ANNUAL AUDIT SERVICES 

 
The Quantum Park Overlay Dependent District hereby requests proposals for annual 
financial auditing services. The proposal must provide for the auditing of the District’s 
financial records for the fiscal years ending September 30, 2018, September 30, 2019, and 
September 30, 2020, with an option for an additional two-year renewal.  In addition to the 
annual financial auditing services referenced above, the selected auditing firm will be 
required to include an analysis of all money spent on legal, engineering, and 
management services during the last 5 years, and identify any perceived conflicts of 
interest with Board members during this time period. 
 
The District is a local unit of special-purpose government created under Chapter 189, 
Florida Statutes, for the purpose of financing, constructing, and maintaining public 
infrastructure.  The District was formed in 2005 and encompasses approximately 582 acres 
in Palm Beach County. In 2008, the District executed a Loan Agreement for $1,008,400.  
In 2010, the District executed a Loan Agreement for $2,236,719.  The loans were used for 
certain infrastructure improvements within the District.  Additional information about the 
District is available upon request. 
 
All applicants must be duly licensed under Chapter 473 and qualified to conduct audits in 
accordance with government auditing standards as adopted by the Florida Board of 
Accountancy (Yellow Book).  Audits shall be conducted in accordance with Florida Law 
and particularly Section 218.39, Florida Statutes, and the rules of the Florida Auditor 
General. Proposal packages, which include evaluation criteria and instructions to 
proposers, are available from the District Manager.  Interested firms should submit five (5) 
copies and one (1) digital copy of their qualifications, and any other supporting 
documentation to Quantum Park Overlay Dependent District, c/o Special District Services, 
Inc., 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 on or before 4:00 p.m. on 
October 30, 2018, in an envelope marked on the outside “Auditing Services-Quantum Park 
Overlay Dependent District”.  Proposed Audit Fees must be good for a period of not less 
than 90 days. Questions should be directed to the District Manager at 561-630-4922 and/or 
toll free at 1-877-737-4922.  The District reserves the right to reject all or portions of the 
submittals. All costs to prepare the proposals shall be at the proposer’s expense. 
 
QUANTUM PARK OVERLAY DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
 
www.quantumparkoverlaydd.org 
 
PUBLISH:   PALM BEACH POST    10/08/18 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE QUANTUM PARK 
OVERLAY DEPENDENT DISTRICT, AUTHORIZING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A 
DISTRICT CHECKING/OPERATING ACCOUNT, DESIGNATING DISTRICT 
OFFICIALS AND/OR AUTHORIZED STAFF TO REVIEW, APPROVE AND ISSUE 
PAYMENT OF EXPENDITURES, SELECTING THE SIGNATORIES THEREOF; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, The Quantum Park Overlay Dependent District ("District") has established a 

District checking/operating account in order for the District to expend public funds of the District as 

authorized and required; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the District shall designate authorized 

staff and/or District officials to approve expenditures, via electronic or non-electronic approval processes, 

from the checking/operating account;  

WHEREAS, the Board of the District has selected Todd Wodraska, Jason Pierman, Patricia 

LasCasas, and        to serve as the signatories, as required, on the 

District checking/operating account; and 

WHEREAS, all resolutions or parts thereof of the District in conflict with the provisions 

contained herein are to the extent of any such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed. 

      
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 

QUANTUM PARK OVERLAY DEPENDENT DISTRICT, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

Section 2. Each expenditure from the checking/operating account will require a minimum of 

two (2) approvals and a designated member of the Board, by an electronic approval procedure, will have 

an opportunity to review the District’s expenditure(s) prior to release of payment(s). 

Section 3. When necessary to write checks, the signatures of two (2) of the designated 

signatories named herein will be required on all District checks tendered from the District 

checking/operating account, as approved. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and becomes EFFECTIVE this 15th day of November, 2018. 
 

 
ATTEST: QUANTUM PARK OVERLAY 
 DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 8



Quantum Park Overlay
Dependent District

  Financial Report For
October 2018

Page 9



QUANTUM PARK OVERLAY DEPENDENT DISTRICT
MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT

OCTOBER 2018

Year
Annual To Date
Budget Actual Actual

REVENUES 10/1/18 - 9/30/19 Oct-18 10/1/18 - 10/31/18
O & M ASSESSMENTS 409,928 0 0
DEBT ASSESSMENTS (2008 LOAN) 101,973 0 0
DEBT ASSESSMENTS (2010 LOAN) 285,406 0 0
OTHER REVENUES 0 0 0
INTEREST INCOME 720 0 0
TOTAL REVENUES 798,027$                                  -$                                              -$                                            

EXPENDITURES
ENGINEERING/GENERAL SERVICES 0 0 0
ENGINEERING/MAINTENANCE MANAGEMENT 0 0 0
ENGINEERING/PERMITS 2,000 0 0
MAINTENANCE MANAGEMENT 54,000 4,500 4,500
MAINTENANCE RESERVE 100,000 7,234 7,234
SUPERVISORS FEES 2,400 0 0
PAYROLL TAXES - EMPLOYER 192 0 0
MANAGEMENT 49,056 4,088 4,088
LEGAL - GENERAL 55,000 0 0
LEGAL - LITIGATION & EXPENSES 90,000 0 0
ASSESSMENT ROLL 7,500 0 0
AUDIT FEES 3,800 0 0
INSURANCE 13,129 11,250 11,250
LEGAL ADVERTISING 2,000 807 807
MISCELLANEOUS 3,000 12 12
POSTAGE 800 18 18
OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,500 110 110
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 175 175 175
WEBSITE MANAGEMENT 1,500 125 125
APPRAISAL FEE 0 0 0
CONTINGENCY 0 0 0
DISTRICT IMPROVEMENTS 0 0 0

0 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 386,052$                                  28,319$                                        28,319$                                      

REVENUES LESS EXPENDITURES 411,975$                                  (28,319)$                                       (28,319)$                                     

2008 LOAN PAYMENTS (95,855)                                     -                                                    -                                                  
2010 LOAN PAYMENTS (268,282)                                   -                                                    -                                                  

BALANCE 47,838$                                    (28,319)$                                       (28,319)$                                     

COUNTY APPRAISER & TAX COLLECTOR FEE (15,946)                                     (1,120)                                           (1,120)                                         
DISCOUNTS FOR EARLY PAYMENTS (31,892)                                     -                                                    -                                                  

EXCESS/ (SHORTFALL) -$                                          (29,439)$                                       (29,439)$                                     

CARRYOVER FROM PRIOR YEAR 0

NET EXCESS/ (SHORTFALL) -$                                          (29,439)$                                       (29,439)$                                     

Total Fund Balance As Of 10/31/18 899,472.90$                             

Bank Balance As Of 9/30/18 485,148.71$                             2008 Loan Bank Account Recap
Funds Received: 10/1/18 - 10/31/18 -$                                          Bank Balance As Of 9/30/18 33,258.07$                                 
Disbursements: 10/1/18 - 10/31/18 78,284.44$                               Activity: 10/1/18 - 10/31/18 (10,144.67)$                                
Bank Balance As Of 10/31/18 406,864.27$                             Bank Balance As Of 10/31/18 23,113.40$                                 
Accounts Payable As Of 10/31/18 16,766.36$                               2010 Debt Loan Account Recap
Permit Review Fees As Of 10/31/18 14,273.78$                               Bank Balance As Of 9/30/18 499,227.87$                               
Accounts Receivable As Of 10/31/18 1,307.50$                                 Activity: 10/1/18 - 10/31/18 -$                                            
Operating Account Balance As Of 10/31/18 377,131.63$                             Bank Balance As Of 10/31/18 499,227.87$                               

Page 10



 Quantum Park Overlay Dependent District

Expenditures
 October 2018

Date Invoice # Vendor Description Amount

Expenditures

511.311 · Management Fees

10/31/2018 2018-2573 Special District Services, Inc Management Fee Oct 2018 4,088.00

Total 511.311 · Management Fees 4,088.00

511.314 · Maintenance Management

10/31/2018 2018-2573 Special District Services, Inc Management Fee-Field Maintenance Oct 2018 4,500.00

Total 511.314 · Maintenance Management 4,500.00

511.450 · Insurance

10/01/2018 8063 Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors Invoice #8063 Renew Policy #100118055 10/1/18-10/1/19 11,250.00

Total 511.450 · Insurance 11,250.00

511.480 · Legal Advertisements

10/08/2018 I00427996-10082018 PBN Invoice #I00427996-10082018 RFP for Annual Audit Services 275.20

10/10/2018 I00428895-101028 PBN Invoice #I00428895-101028 Notice of LO Mtg 426.56

10/11/2018 i0000353326-1011 ALM Media LLC invoice #I0000353326-1011 Notice of Reg Board Mtg 104.81

Total 511.480 · Legal Advertisements 806.57

511.512 · Miscellaneous

10/31/2018 2018-2573 Special District Services, Inc Document Storage Sept  2018 12.66

Total 511.512 · Miscellaneous 12.66

511.513 · Postage and Delivery

10/31/2018 2018-2573 Special District Services, Inc Postage Sept  2018 18.16

Total 511.513 · Postage and Delivery 18.16

511.514 · Office Supplies

10/31/2018 2018-2573 Special District Services, Inc Copier Charges Sept 2018 77.85

10/31/2018 2018-2573 Special District Services, Inc Meeting Books Sept 2018 32.00

Total 511.514 · Office Supplies 109.85

511.516 · Website Management Fee

10/31/2018 2018-2573 Special District Services, Inc Website Management Oct 2018 125.00

Total 511.516 · Website Management Fee 125.00

511.540 · Dues, License & Subscriptions

10/01/2018 72530 Department of Economic Opportunit Invoice #72530 FY 2018/2019 Special District Fee 175.00

Total 511.540 · Dues, License & Subscriptions 175.00

512.500 · Maintenance Reserve

10/01/2018 1810311 American Ecosystems, Inc. Invoice #1810311 Water Treatment Management 1,750.00

10/01/2018 19740 Michael R. Briggs Invoice #19740 Monthly Service of Irrigation for Oct 2018 500.00

10/01/2018 12763 BG Katz Property Maint Invoice #12763 Landscape Maint for October 2018 2,340.00

10/04/2018 19781 Michael R. Briggs Invoice #19781 Replace Time Clock #3 926.06

10/18/2018 20666-65163 FPL Account #20666-65163 for 09/19//2018 to 10/18/2018 43.93

10/23/2018 19801 Michael R. Briggs Invoice #19801 Materials fore Oct Monthly Irrigation Services 168.65

Page 11



 Quantum Park Overlay Dependent District

Expenditures
 October 2018

Date Invoice # Vendor Description Amount

10/25/2018 144050 Hoover Pumping Systems, Inc. Invoice #144050 Pump Repair 1,504.98

Total 512.500 · Maintenance Reserve 7,233.62

Total Expenditures 28,318.86

The current balance of the 2008 Quantum Overlay Loan is $415,765.21 – loan matures In May 2023
The current balance of the 2010 Quantum Overlay Loan is $754,790.00 – loan matures In November 2020

Page 12


	Quantum Park Overlay Dependent District - November 15, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	October 18, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Status Report of the Auditor Selection Process
	Consider Resolution No. 2018-07 – Electronic Approval Process and Authorized Signatories
	Financial Report




